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Ch8: Subdivision (Part) 28.10.15 

  [1.05 pm] 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Right, thank you. Now, okay, good afternoon everyone. 

So we’ve got Ms Scott for the Council. 

 5 

MS SCOTT:   Good afternoon. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Carranceja and Ms Silcock for the Crown. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir. 10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Ms Appleyard for Orion, Catholic Diocese, Church 

Property Trustees and Alpine. 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   Yes, sir. 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr van Mierlo for Te Runanga o Ngai Tahu. 

 

MR VAN MIERLO:   Yes, sir. 

 20 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Any other submitters or other interested people here for 

the transcript, if you could just speak your name? Just bring the 

microphone around. 

 

MS McKEEVER:  Thank you, sir. Claire McKeever for Eliot Sinclair and 25 

Partners and our submission is 3701. 

 

MR STOKES:   Colin Stokes, submitter 1182. 

 

MR OSTASH:   Michael Ostash, submitter 3661. 30 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Sorry, your second name? Could you say your second 

name? 

 

MR OSTASH:   Michael Ostash. 35 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Thank you. All right, well, thank you everyone. Now, 

Ms Scott, just in terms of your memorandum, you are proposing – well, 

first of all, dealing with the question of scope, are there any of the 

submitters who have put in appearances today that your memorandum 40 

relates to on the question of scope? 

 

MS SCOTT:  Sir, just at the start I wondered if I could address you on proposal 

9 versus proposal 19, similar to the pre-hearing meetings that we had 

yesterday about, we have discussed the matter of them going to alter 45 
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natural and cultural heritage rather than being separated out to natural 

cultural heritage and the coastal environment hearing. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right, so you’re going to seek a change to that. Just 

before we go there though, just on the matter of your question of 5 

whether or not certain submissions were in scope or not, I was just 

testing whether there are any other submitters in your list that – 

Ms Appleyard - - - 

 

MS APPLEYARD:  I think Orion is in the list if we’re going from Schedule C. 10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Yes, okay. Yes, so what I propose is that we follow the 

same process in regard to this as has been applied in the other pre-

hearing meetings and set a timetable of five working days for parties 

that the Council has suggested are beyond scope, to have an 15 

opportunity to state their position on that and for the Council to respond 

within two further working days. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir. 

 20 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right. We direct accordingly. So, coming back to the 

other matter, so just in terms of your broad proposition of putting these 

in other Chapter hearings, perhaps before I hear from you on that, are 

any other parties wanting to be heard on that question before we mark a 

direction about that? 25 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   I do, sir. But perhaps my learned friend goes first. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, yes, okay. All right, well, Ms Scott, do you want 

to just explain how you want to modify the position? It was one matter 30 

which we had noted ourselves and it may well be that what you’ve got 

to say will pick that up. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir. So in paragraph 5 of the memorandum there is a 

table there and it outlines the provisions that have been notified in the 35 

Subdivision Stage 3 proposal. The Council had proposed that they be 

separated out into proposal 9, which is the natural and cultural heritage 

proposal and inter-proposal 19, which is the coastal environment 

proposal. Following discussions with counsel for the Crown, the 

Council has acknowledged that it would be more efficient for those 40 

provisions all to be relocated to the natural and cultural heritage 

proposal, with one exception, and that is the rule 8.8.2, table 1, 

maximum volumes, and that relates specifically to the Land Use 

Recovery - - - 

 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   With 50 square metres or whatever it is for the coastal 

area, which is just for that particular topic and logically belongs there. 

 

MS SCOTT:   It is, sir. 

 5 

  [1.10 pm] 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right, well, I think Ms Dawson, does that cover the 

basin?  

 10 

MS DAWSON:  Yes, following my thoughts yesterday I just had a bit of a 

check of this one and thought exactly as you had.  So in the light of that 

would you go back to the other ones that we dealt with yesterday and 

just do a check like that again? 

 15 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, we have done that and we addressed those in the pre-

hearing meetings yesterday afternoon. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Oh, sorry, I wasn’t here then. 

 20 

MS SCOTT:  No, and the outcome is entirely consistent with what we are 

suggesting here.  So the matters of discretion that were notified in 

stage 3 rural and in stage 3 transport will all go into the natural, they 

will be heard in the natural and cultural heritage hearing and not split 

into chapter 9 and 19. 25 

 

MS DAWSON:  Yes, and where there are specific things like this threshold 

within the coastal zone then that is fine it can go into the coastal 

proposal hearing but generally it is matters of discretion in that light 

would stay with the natural and cultural heritage hearing? 30 

 

MS SCOTT:  Yes, I think you are referring to the flatland recovery, the 

specific one. 

 

MS DAWSON:   That is right, yes.  Thank you very much for doing that. 35 

 

MS SCOTT:   No, thank you, thanks for raising it. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So just to be absolutely clear in the table itself if we were 

to put a ring around the only thing you want addressed in the coastal 40 

hearing is that part of the table on page – oh, it is actually not 

paginated. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Well, is it actually the flatland recovery one that you are 

wanting to - - - 45 
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MS SCOTT:   Yes, it is, it is the right hand column.  So if we put a ring around 

proposal 21 stage 3 text and then the second and third columns they 

collectively all go to proposal 9. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay. 5 

 

MS DAWSON:   Thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So I just wondered about one thing then I think, which is 

why I asked the question before, but it is more for my own 10 

clarification.   

 

MS DAWSON:   Is this the table 1? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  I am just wanting to have another look at this one question.   15 

 

MS DAWSON:   Page 101, is that - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   No, I am just looking, there was a volumetric standard for 

the coastal area for earthworks. 20 

 

MS DAWSON:   103. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sir, I think it is on page 103 of the notified proposal. 

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, unfortunately, my page numbering is different.   

 

 I was entirely in the wrong place, all right, I have got it now, thank you, 

everyone is ahead of me today.  So is that still appropriately dealt with 

in natural character and heritage, is that the 50 cubic metres a hectare? 30 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, it is the same principle essentially applies in that it is a 

method that relates to the landscape overlays that have come through 

proposal 9. 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, okay. 

 

MS SCOTT:   It just happens to be located in the coastal environment. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right.  What we will ask you to do just is to put an 40 

update of this to us afterwards for the Secretariat to simply follow and 

make directions around that. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, the intention is to include that in an application for an order 

about the scope of the - - - 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, and include the whole lot in one. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, we are endeavouring to get that to you at some stage today 

but we are conscious that the pre-hearing meetings are continuing so 

hopefully there is no changes tomorrow. 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir. 

 10 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. Now, Mr Carranceja, is there is anything 

further to that? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir, the Crown is content with has been proposed 

by the Council.  The points I wish to raise with you, sir, though there 15 

are three submission points by the Crown made on this chapter 8 

proposal.  I have asked the Secretariat to put it up on screen for you, sir, 

because there are three submission points that have not been allocated 

to a hearing but I would like to speak about that to you now, sir. 

 20 

 I am looking at the bottom three submission points, the bottom three 

rows.  So the first submission point you will see there is to do with 

rule 8.8.2P1 (ph 4.41) earthworks.  The submission point there, sir, is 

that when the Panel comes to look at the natural hazards proposal, 

which is proposal No 5, that proposal has a table of rules relating to 25 

earthworks in what is known as the Flood Ponding Management Area. 

 

  [1.15 pm] 

 

 The Crown has lodged a submission on this proposal just to clarify that 30 

the same earthworks provisions which apply here do not apply to that 

Flood Ponding Management Area otherwise you have duplication and 

in fact you get confusion as to which rules apply.   

 

 My proposal, sir, is that this specific submission point is best dealt with 35 

as part of the natural hazards proposal because that is where the rules 

governing earthworks in the Flood Ponding Management Area are to be 

dealt with.  This is really a consequential amendment, sir, to make sure 

that you don’t have duplication or confusion. 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, and the others? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:  The second point, sir, this is to do with rule 8.8.2 

table 1, that sets out the maximum volumes of earthworks.  The Crown 

would like to insert into that table a rule relating to waterbody margins. 45 

Essentially that there are no maximum volumes of earthworks then, 
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essentially you need a resource consent.  Waterbody margins, sir, are 

dealt with as part of chapter 6 general. 

 

 So it is similar to what my learned friend has done with that part of the 

table dealing with the Specific Purpose zone.  This one deals with a 5 

waterbody margin.  Waterbody margins are a chapter 6 issue general 

rules, sir.  So I think that should be heard as part of that. 

 

 Lastly, sir, is rule 8.8.4 earthworks.  This rule relates to the overlays 

that have been inserted in stage 3 relating to natural and cultural 10 

heritage matters.  Essentially the purpose of the submission is to change 

the activity status of a breach of earthworks provisions dealing with 

these natural and cultural heritage overlays from discretionary activity 

to non-complying activity.  This submission point too, sir, not reflected 

in the Council’s memorandum should be heard as part of natural and 15 

cultural heritage, that is chapter 9, sir.  So going in order from the 

submission point so it is 5, 6 and 9, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right, and do you know if there are any further 

submissions on the Crown’s submission? 20 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   I am not aware of any, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   That obviously can be checked.  Have you discussed with 

Ms Scott? 25 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   That has been raised with her but I understand she is 

still awaiting instructions. 

 

MS SCOTT:  I have just received instructions. That reallocation of the 30 

submission points is fine from the Council’s perspective.  It is a slightly 

separate issue as to allocation of notified provisions to hearings but 

from the Council’s perspective what is important is that those particular 

submission points are included in the accept/reject table for the relevant 

hearings if that is the direction the Panel makes. 35 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So would the most convenient approach be for you to take 

account of these three matters in the document you prepare so we make 

one single set of directions covering everything? 

 40 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, would you like that included in the order? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Well, I am just thinking it might be the easiest thing to 

actually make sure it is wrapped up in one document, one set of 

directions issues rather than deal with it distinctly from that.  I mean 45 

effectively just fold it into that one document. 
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MS SCOTT:   Okay, sir, we can do that, thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right, thank you.  So I take it that the Council’s 

position on these suggestions is effectively that the Council’s evidence 5 

as a result would effectively be the evidence for the relevant chapters 

plus any additional evidence from Mr Long in regard, is that how the 

Council sees it? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, so any additional evidence required on the subdivision 10 

matters would be provided by Mr Long at the natural and cultural 

heritage hearing. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, and unless anyone wanted to there is probably 

no need for us to hear from parties today on their intentions for calling 15 

evidence, because I take the assumption to be in effect all parties would 

effectively call the evidence for those chapters picking up on these 

issues, and they don’t seem to be that distinct that would warrant 

additional witnesses being added to the list they have already indicated. 

 20 

MR CARRANCEJA:   That is correct, sir, from the Crown’s perspective. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So does any party have any other issues they wanted to 

raise?  Yes. 

 25 

MR VAN MIERLO:  Sir, I assume the issues statement set out in this 

memorandum will be carried over to the cultural and natural heritage? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well, yes, I suppose that is right, it is subject to any 

modifications that any party saw as needed that would be right and I 30 

should probably ask that question, if any parties have any issues with 

the issues statement on the assumption that they are folded into the 

relevant chapters. 

 

MR VAN MIERLO:  Sir, and on that, sir, I was going to request an additional 35 

issue on behalf of Te Rūnanga o Ngāi Tahu, I have discussed it with 

Ms Scott and she has indicated that the Council is comfortable with it. 

 

  [1.20 pm] 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, can you briefly describe that and then we will 

just follow through presumably to have that folded into the updated - - - 

 

MR VAN MIERLO:   Sir, the issue would most appropriately follow Issue 3, 

so it would be a new Issue 4, and, sir, I will just read it out, “do the 45 

objectives and policies regarding earthworks and rules and matters of 
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discretion appropriately recognise and provide for the protection of 

sites of Ngai Tahu cultural significance”. Sorry, it’s a little bit of a 

mouthful, sir. I’ll repeat it again, “do the objectives and policies 

regarding earthworks and rules and matters of discretion appropriately 

recognise and provide for the protection of sites of Ngai Tahu cultural 5 

significance”. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you, all right, thank you. Ms Scott, I take it that’s 

fine? 

 10 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, that is fine, and what I propose is because there has been a 

few suggested amendments to the statement of issues for Natural and 

Cultural Heritage and because of the changes yesterday regarding Rural 

and Transport today, that for Natural and Cultural Heritage we file an 

updated and complete statement of issues for that Chapter. 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, I think that’s right, and perhaps if you could, please 

confer with – I’m just thinking of other counsel, but specifically 

Mr Carranceja, on anything that arises from the requests he’s just made 

in terms of any issues, statements that are made for the relevant 20 

Chapters, there may be nothing, but just to make sure we’ve covered 

the bases. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir.   

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right, so given the nature of this matter is effectively to 

fold things into other Chapters, there’s no need for me to go through 

the usual list in regard to the directions issued, the directions that will 

be issued for the other Chapters will simply apply in regard to all 

matters and in regard to – just to explain for the submitters down the 30 

back of the room, what happens after these pre-hearing meetings is that 

we will issue a set of directions that guide everyone and ourselves as to 

how the hearing is going to be conducted and how matters are going to 

be addressed in terms of evidence and other things. 

 35 

 So a set of directions is then issued on matters to do with mediation, 

expert conferencing, the exchange of evidence, which I will comment 

on briefly for your benefit – the process of exchange of that and 

arrangements around cross-examination and how that’s undertaken. So 

I suppose I should just ask the opening question for submitters who 40 

aren’t familiar with this process, do you have any questions on any of 

that which I can assist you with now, otherwise you will be able to get 

the assistance from reading the minute that issues, and also I should 

introduce you to the Friend of Submitter, if he can put his hand up, and 

you can speak to Richard at any stage after we adjourn. So are there 45 

any issues you had around evidence or submissions and so forth?  
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 Just a general observation about that, those that seek to be heard are 

entitled to call evidence and a lot of parties call expert evidence, but 

they can also call evidence about their own issues and they can elect, 

you can elect, for instance, to either speak to your submission for the 5 

allocated time in the hearing or elect to call evidence, in which case 

there are directions around when you have to file that that will issue, 

and there’s processes that apply to evidence, including the potential for 

people to cross-examine you on it. So it’s something you can elect to 

do and if you have any questions just follow them up with the Friend of 10 

Submitter.  

 

 All right, well, if there’s nothing else, we will adjourn until the next 

pre-hearing meeting this afternoon, otherwise thank you very much. 

 15 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir. 

 

ADJOURNED [1.25 pm] 


